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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The annual
report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintecnance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtaincd, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

QG
o



BSR&Co. LLP

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made

in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of.Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

weta Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No. 509822

Date: 09 June 2021 UDIN:21509822AAAABD7419
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

@ (@)

(b)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets
(property plant and equipment and intangible assets).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its fixed assets. As informed to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deed of the immovable property is held in the name of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, except goods-in-transit,
has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business. For goods-in transit, substantially all materials were received/ delivered until the date of
issuance of the report. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical inventory and the books records were not material and have been properly adjusted in the
books.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities given in respect of which Section 185 of the Act is applicable to the
Company. Further as explained to us and based on our audit procedures performed, we are of the
opinion that provisions of section 186 of the Act have been complied in respect of the loan given
by the Company. There are no guarantees given, investments made or securities provided by the
Company as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for any of the activities performed by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable,
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(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues,
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a
significant delay in payment of Income Tax in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty
of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, were in arrears as at
31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except for

following:
Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date Date of
Statue Dues (INR which the Payment
Millions) | amount relates
Income- Tax Act, | Advance Tax 2.7 FY 2020-2021 15-Sep-2020 | Not  yet
1961 paid

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and Value Added
tax which has not been deposited as on 31 March 2021 on account of any dispute except for the

following:
Name of the Nature of Dues | Amount (INR Period to which | Forum where
Statue Millions) the amount dispute is
relates pending

Central Excise | Excise Duty 28.20 October 2015 to | Additional

Act, 1944 July 2017 Director General,
Directorate
General of Goods
and Services Tax
Intelligence

(viii))  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to any banks. The Company did not have any dues to debenture
holders or outstanding loans or borrowings from any financial institutions or government during
the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company
in accordance with provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.
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(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiil)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the current year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
AL
Mmar
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date : 09 June 2021 Membership No. 509822

UDIN: 21509822AAAABD7419
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ reporton the financial statements of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited for the period ended 31 March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transaclions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

J-.

&"V
veta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No. 509822
Date: 09 June 2021 UDIN:21509822AAAABD7419



Mindda Eovel Alumiinum Wheel Provate Limited

Hatance Sheef as ot 31 March 2021

(M| figures ere m T Milbion, cxeept share dats and unless otherwise ststed)
L0 129130DE201 SPTT2TAYYS

ASSETS

Non-aarren! assets

Property, planl and equipment
Capital work-m-progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Loans

Olhrer financial assets.
Deferred tax assers (get)
Nao-current tax assets{net)
QOther nan-cument assets

Curven! assets
Inventories
Finarcial assets
Trade receivables
Cash ud cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash und cash equivalents
Loans
Other finmncial assets
Other curvent assets
TOTAL ASSETS
ECUTTY ANT LIADILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
LLab2itiey
Noo- current iablbiles
Fimncial liabilitics
Borrowings
Other financia] Linbilities
Provisions
Government grants

Current Uabilities
Finncial liabilities
Trade payables
Total ounstanding dues of micro enterprises and sall enterprises
Total eutsmnding dues of creditors othes than micro enterprises
and small eterprises
Otber financia] liabilites
Other current liabilities
Current tax liabilities (met)
Provisions
TOTAL EQUITY AND LEIABILITIES

Signiflcznt aceounting palicles

The notes refexred ta above form an integral pant of these financial statements

As per our repart of even date atiached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chorsered Accounmnts
Finu Registration No,:101243W/W-100022

AL

Kymar
-4
Membership No : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 June 2021

Note No.

" o2

sywmaa

154
LB

16A.
168
17

3.

20
2l

1

Asel
31 Morch 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

434038 38026
3135 1,046
125 75
169 164
28 352
450 71
741 7.1
172 79
6161 6388
983.6 1047
868 1432
249 349.6
167 129
363 302
1469 166
59318 55714
13838 13838
23798 1,7719
6720 8853
200 334
3033 3587
367.2 3672
280 28
6918 919.7
3622 3739
1086 09
159 -
102 78
FXEEA GA71A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Minda Kosel Alonainum Wheel Private Limited

!

LA

Mamygmg Hisectss
DIN Ne G7i377M08

Flice Ghugram

Place: Gurogram
Date: 9 June 2021
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e27E37N
DI.“;}‘E:‘ 08321847

Plice Guregam
Date: 7 June 2471
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Alhih Bebal
Company Seerctary
Membership Mo ACS A54585

Place; Gurugram
Date. § June 2021




Minds Kose] Aluminum Wheel Private Limiled
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year coded 31 March 2021
{All figures are in 2 Million, excepl share data and unless othenwise stated)

CIN: U29130D1.2015PTC278233

Note No. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020
Revenue from operations 22 . 5,187.1 5,339.1
Other income 23 386 345
Total lncome 522587 332136
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 2,490.5 2,3315
Changes in inventenes of finished goods and work-i -in-progress 25 (11.0) 547
Employee benefits cxpense 26, 379.1 3869
Finance costs 27 1359 189.7
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 548.2 5893
Other expenses 29 8863 9853
Tatel expenses 4,429.0 4.537.4
Profit before tax 796.7 8362
Tax expense:
Current tax 2355 2759
Tax related to carlier vears . 57
Deferred tax (37.9) (100.8)
Profit for the year 599.1 6554
Other Comprebensive Income
Itemns that will not to be recinssifled subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on defined benefit plens 37 (3.6)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.9) 14
Net other comprehensive income 2.8 42)
Total comprehensive Income for the yenr 601.9 6512
Baslc and dlluted earnings per share (in ?) 15D. 32 35
(Face value of ¥ 10 per share)
‘Weighted average equity shares used in compullng earnings per equity share 15 D. 13,83,80,000 18,85,80,000
Slgnificapt accounting pollcles 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our repart of even date attached For und on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Minda Kosel Aluminum Whee] Private Limited
Far BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No :101248W/W-100022
Ku {cr.hlhim Tod \
Mmagng Direetor Darector

Stiwets Kumar
Parmer
Membership No. : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Daie: 9 June 2021

DIN No: 07137705

Ploce: Lintugram

Place: Gurugram
Date & fune 2021

DIN No: 08121667

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 Junr 2021

=
A

Ashish Behal
Company Secretary

Membership No.: ACS A54585

Place: Gurugram
Date: § June 2621




Minda Kosel Aluminum Whee Private Limited

tatement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

LAl fignmes are in T Million, excep share dowa ond unless otherwise sinted)
(I3 U29130DL201SPTC278233

Particulars

A. Cash Mow from opersting nctivities
Profn before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net of mark to moket gain on
derivative)
Finance costs
Interes! income
Operating profit before worlday caplsl changes

Working capitsl adjustments:

Decrease in Inventory

D 7 ) in trade receivabl
Incrense in loans & other finmcial asscts
Decrease / (incvease) in other assets
Increxse/(Decrease) in trade pavebles
Increase in other financia] Linbilities

I in isions for emplovee benefits
(Decrease) / increase m other current habilities

Cash geaerated from opcratlons
Tucome tax paid
Net cash flow from operating scitvities (A)

B. Cash flow from Investing activitles:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibls assets
Fixed depouits with banks
Interest received
Net eash used In Inveallog sctivitles (B)

C. Cayh flows from financing actlvities

Repayments of borrowings
(Rep ip ds of current b ings (net)
Interest paid

Net cash from/(used) io Nnsnclog aciivities {C)

Net Incresse/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cesh and cash equivalents st the beginning of the year

Cash nnd eash equivalents at the end of the vear

2013, Also refer note 16A in respect of disclosure related 10 Ind AS 7
As per owr report of even dale attached
FarBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :101248W/W-100022

Ta KI;HIGF
Partper
Membership No. : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 June 2021

The Cash flow statcment has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian A

Year cuded Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
7967 8362
5482 589.3
123 571
1359 189.7
{72) 639.2 (25.4) A
1.485.9 1.646.9
22.7 1260
(578.9) 2944
(61.0) (115
(130.3) 247.7
(226.4) 189.0
65 34
B9 83
61.7 (890.8) (26.2) 2305
§95.1 24774
2252) {2833}
369.9 2,194.1
{530.2) (503.8)
3574 (3354)
7.5 . 254
{165.3) (813.9)
(161.1) (1,000 2)
S (1525)
99.9) (154 )
1261.0
(56.4) 7.8
1432 704
86.8 1432
ting Standnrd-7 on S of Cash flows as notified under section 133 of the Cornpanies Act,

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Minda Kosel AlumInum Wheel Private Limited

ndan Kandn
Mapsging Director
DINNa: 07137705

Place: Garugtar
Date Juge 2021

Clief Velkmeol Offiect

Place: Gurugram
[are, 9 Juge 202}

S b
/’ ENEA,
‘erhihiro Toda
Dhrector

DI No: 08121667

Place Gunugram
Datz; 9 June 2021

A \.\r

Ashish Behsl ~
Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS A54585

Place; Gurugram
Dtz B June 2011




CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

A. Equity share capital
Bslance as at 31 March 2019

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Balance as at 31 March 2021

B. Other equity

Mindn Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
|Statement of Changes in equity for the year eaded 31 March 2021
(All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20

Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21

Amount

1.883.8

1,883.8

1,883.8

Attributable to equity shareholders

Reserves and surplus

Retalned earnings Items of OCI Totnl
Remesasurement of

deflned benefit

liability / asset
As at 1 April 2019 1,126.7 - 1.126.7
Profit for the year 655.4 - 6554
Other comprehensive income {net of tax) - 4.2) 32)
Totul comprehensive income 6554 4.2) 651.2
Transferred 1o reined earnings “@.2) 42 -
Asat1 April 2020 1.777.9 - . 1.7779
Profit for the year 5991 399.1
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 28 28
Total comprehensive income 599.1 28 01,9
Transferred to retained eamings 28 2.8) -
As at 31 March 2021 23798 - 23798

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

A

weta .Kl.lruar
Partner
Membership No. : 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 Junc 2021

Firm Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Minda Kosel Aluminam Wheel Private Limited

{ "
Kunfldh K LQE:!,,-

Manbbing Difector
DIN No: 07137705

Ploce: Gurugram
Date: 9 fune 2021

Pawan
Chief Findgeml Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 June 2021

o f.
TUEY
ghim Toda j\
Director

DIN No: 08121667

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 June 2021

s>

Ashish Behat
Company Secretary

Membership No.: ACS A54585

Place: Gurugram
Date: 9 June 2021




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

1. Corporate information
Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company
incorporated on 23 March 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office at
is B-64/1 Industrial Area, Wazirpur New Delhi. It is a venture between Minda Industries
Limited and Kosei International Trade and Investment Co. Limited. The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of Aluminium alloy wheels.

2, Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The Financial Statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 09 June 2021.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and one decimal
thereof, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement Basis

(2) Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Present value of defined benefit
obligations

(b) Certain financial assets and liabilities

. . (LR o
(including derivative instruments) Fair value

D. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information
about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Judgements or Estimates

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 8

- Estimated useful life of other intangible asset — Note 5 and Note 3 (E)

- Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment — Note 4 and
Note 3 (d) (iii)

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies — Note 31

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 32

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

E. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification. The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity,
non-current liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule 1il, Division Il of
Companies Act, 2013 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current,

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
financial statements.




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PT(C278233

A.

Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions arc generally recognized in profit or loss.

. Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

The date of transaction which is required to determine the spot exchange rate for translation
would be the earlier of:

*  The date of initial recognition of the non — monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
liability, and
* The date that the related item is recognised in the financial statements.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit and loss.
Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant
fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. [f
third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. [f the inputs used to° fngz_i__sglre the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PT(C278233

C.

into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the respective notes.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

a) Amortised cost; or
b) FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and |
assets at losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in |
FVTPL profit or loss. : '

= =
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

iv.

V.

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
assets at effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
amortised cost | losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognised in profit or loss.

|

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial m<trummt< to hedge its foreign currency risk
exposures. ; :
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct Jabour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cost
of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are
attributable to construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

ii.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided as per straight-line method
basis, as per useful life of the assets estimated by the management, which is equal to the useful
life prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of certain plant
and equipment, the life is based on technical evaluation and assessment.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are
carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Prafit and Loss.
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The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Particulars

Useful life as per
Companies Act

Management
estimate of useful life

2013 (Years) (Years)
Buildings 30 30
Plant and equipment 15 2/3/5/6/10/15
Furniture and fixtures 10 10
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment 5 = 5
Computers 3 3

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, other intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumutated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method and is included in amortisation expense in statement of

profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Computer software  3/6 years

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

F. Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured

at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:
» the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or
* The disappearance of active market for i security because of financial difficulties.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

» Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

» Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment.  If any
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating
units (CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs)
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs).

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of
borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost
incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
both periods covered by an option extend the feuse il the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option: and periods covered by an 0[._;I]'_(.‘_t_l__'.tfi_i.'l’s_ﬂin;lle the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that pption, bn assessing whether the Company is reasonably
certain o exercise an option to extend a lease. or Not 14 exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
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considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

1. Inventorics

Inventories which comprise raw materials and components, work-in-progress, finished goods and
storcs and spares are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable),
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -
Raw materials and components, stores and spares - Weighted average cost

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus
appropriate share of labour,
manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of
finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have
declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable
value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

J. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

a) Revenue from sale of wheels

Revenue from sale of wheels is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the wheels. The Company considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction
price for the sale of equipment, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer (if any).

..&_
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b) Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. Contracts for the sale of wheels provide customers with a customary
right of return in case of defects, quality issues etc. The rights of return give rise to variable
consideration. The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not
be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which
the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS115 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be
returned, instead of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset
(and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.

¢) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore
are all classified as current. Where the settlement is due after one year, they are classified as non-
current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade receivables are disclosed in Note 38.

d) Contract Assets

A contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity’s
right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due. The impairment of contract assets is measured,
presented and disclosed on the same basis as trade receivables.

¢) Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract. Contract Liabilities are disclosed in Note 38 as Advances received
from customers.

f) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

2) Rental income arising from properties given under operating leases is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
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K. Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and
the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions
The Company accounts for equity settled stock options for the parent company using the fair

value method.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund (EPF)
and Employees’ State Insurance to Government administered fund which is a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(iv) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then- net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and

losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notcs to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

(v) Other long term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.
Since, the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences
in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

L. Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
operating revenue.

M. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down oceurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is
a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Noles (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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N.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

(ii) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount
can be estimated reliably.

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of
compensation charged to income are credited to other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on
a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the
company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable tem porary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefits will be realized. .
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T

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current lax liabililies and assets, and they relate Lo income Laxes levied by the
same tax authorities.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive
equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results would be anti-
dilutive.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of aluminium alloy wheels.
Accordingly, the Company’s activities/ business is reviewed regularly by the Company’s Board
of directors from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its products/services as
individual standalone components.

Based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns of the Company, management has
identified its business segment as its primary reporting format.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

S. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and

short-term deposits, as defined above.

T. Recent accounting pronouncement
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing

standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.
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Ainda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

CIN U2%130DL2015PTC278233
4. Property, plant and equipment and capltal work In progress (Contd.)
b. Security

Above properties are subject to first pari passu charge to securce bank loans [refer to note no 16]

v. Capital work-in-progress

Capiial work-in-progress includes borrowing costs ol  Nil (31 March 2020: 2 1 7 million)

5. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

A. Gross carrying value Computer software
Asat 1 April 2019 21.2
Add: Additions during the vear 03
Less: Disposals / adjustments durine the year -
As at 31 March 2020 21.5
Add: Additions during the year 85
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year -
As at 31 March 2021 30.0

Accumulated amortisation

Asat 1 April 2019 10.2
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 38
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year -

As at 31 March 2020 14.0
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 35
Less On disposals / adjustments dunng the vear -

As at 31 March 2021 17.5

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2021 125
As at 31 March 2020 75




[Mindu Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al figures are in T Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

6. Loans
(unsecured considered good uniess otherwise stated)

Non-current
Sccurity deposits

Current

Loan Receivahle

- from related party
- from employees

7. Other financial assets
(unsecured considered good unless othervise stated)

Non-current
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)*

Current

Interest accrued on deposits
Forward conlract receivable
Other receivables

- From related parties

- From other than related parties

* Represents fixed deposits pledged against Bank Guarantee & Letter of Credit

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

169 164
16,2 16.4
15.0 12.0
1.7 4
16.7 12,9
33.6 29,3
25 352
2.5 332
1.3 1.6
263 26.6
74 19
513 0.1
86.3 3.2
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Minda Kosei Alominum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2021

| M Figures are in T Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CTN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

9.

Tax Assets/ liabilities

9A. Non current tax assets

Advance tax

9B. Curreat tax liabilities

Provision for Income tax

. Other assets

(Unsecured, consulered good, wndess athervise stated)

Non-current

Capilal advances:

- To related pantics

- To other than refated parties

Current

Balance with govemment authoritics
Adyances to suppliers:

- To other than related parties

Piepaid expenses

. Inventories

(vained at lower of cost and net realisuble value)

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

741 74
74.1 74.1
159 -
15.9 =
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1242 -
470 479
171.2 17.9
119 68
1316 53
413 45
146.9 16.6
318.1 64.5

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2024

Raw materials and components 3575 406 1

{Includes raw material in transit Z 88 13 million (31 March 2020: % 116 71 million]

Work- in-progress 607 297

Finished goods 1087 1287

Stores and spares 892 743
6161 638.8

Carrymg amount of inventories (included shove) hypothecated as securities far AT 6388

bamowirzs [refer Lo note no. 16A]

. Trade receivables (Refer note 38)

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Less Allowance for expected credit Joss

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Less: Allowance for credit impairment

The movement in change in allowance for expected credit lass and credit impairment
Balance s at beginning of the year

Change in allowance for expecied credit loss and credit impairment

Trade receivables written oft during the year

Balance as at the end of the yew

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

983 6 4047
983.6 404.7
9836 4047




Minda Kosei Alominum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- current account

- demand deposits

{with onginal matunty ot less than 3 months)
Cash on hand

14. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits (due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date)®

* Includes fixed deposits pledaed against bank Guarantee

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

734 15.2
128 1278
06 02
86.8 143.2

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

249

3496

249

349.6.

to ¥ 24 % million on 31 March 2021 (3 March 2020 T 4 4 tmillion)
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financia) statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All figures are in T Million, except share data and unless otherwise staled)
(CTN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

15 A. Share capital

a) Details of share capital

Authorised share capital

189,000,000 (31 March 2020: 189,000,000) equity shares of Z 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up

188,380,000 (31 March 2021: 188,380,000) cquity shares ot ¥ 10 each tully paid up

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

b) Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2019
Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2020
Add: Shares issued during the yecar
As at 31 March 2021

¢) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

Minda Industries Limited, [ndia (Holding Company)
Minda Industries Limited. India (% held)
Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limited, Hong Kong

Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limited, Hong Kong (% held)

d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attacked to equity shares

1.890.0 1,890.0
1,883.8 1,883.8
1,883.8 1.883.8
Number of Amount
shares (" in millions)
18,83.80.000 1.883.8
18,83,80.000 1,883.8
18,83,80,000 1,883.8
As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

13,18,61,100
70.0%
5,65.14,000

30.0%

13,18,61,100
70.0%
5,65.14.000

30.0%

The Comnpany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of * 10 per share. Each holder ot equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share. The Company may declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of

Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Mceting,.

During the year no interim/ tinal dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the sharcholders.

¢) There are no bonus issue or buy back of equity shares since the incorporation of the Company. Further, there were no shares

issued o consideration other than cash.




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

[ Al figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CTN:U29130DL2015PTC278233

15 B. Other equity As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Retained earning

Balance at the beginning of the ycar 1,777.9 1.§26.7
Profit for the year 599.1 655.4
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 28 (4.2)

Additional tax bencfit on employce stock options exercised during the year - -

Total 2,379.8 1,777.9

15 C. Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to

* safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits [ur
other stakeholders: and

= maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
the future development of the business.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to sharcholders. issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, consistent with others in the industry. The Company manitirs
capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by “Total equily” (as shown in the Balance Sheet).

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 538.4 1.091.2
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (86.8) (143.2)
Total debts 851.6 948.0
Equity share capital 1,883.8 1.883.8
Other equity 2,379.8 1.777.9
Total equity 4,263.6 3,661.7
Debt to equity ratio 0.2 0.3
15 D. Earming per share
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders (% in millions) 599.1 655.4
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 18,83,80,000 18.83.80.000
Basic and diluted camings per share (Gice value Z 10 per shire) (in € 3.2 3.5
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16A.

Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Sccured
Rupee Ioan from banks
Forcign currency loan from bank
Less: Amount included under 'other financial liabilitics’

2. Terms repayment schedule and security

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2021

6297 6842
308 7 4070
(261 4) {205.9)
677.0 8853
677.0 885.3

Nature of security

Terms of repayment and rate of interest

Indusind Bank

Rupee ioan from bank amounting to 2 89.54 million (31 March 2020; ¥

96.8 million) is secured by:

- Firse pari passu charge by way of equitable morigage on innmovable

property (land and building) located at Bawal, Haryana and by way of

hypothecation on all present and future moveabic property, plant and
equipment (PPLZ)

- Second pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the present and
future current assets

Rate of interest - Noating g2 Indusind Bank base rate 6 month MCLR. Currently 7.50%
at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020; 8 95%)

Maxitnum f2nor of Toan is for 96 months from the date of first disbursemient

Principal amount is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments after a moratorium period of
24 months from the date of first disbursement. First disbursement of the loan was in year
2018-19

Induoslnd Bank
Rupee loan from bank amounting to Z 124 873 million (31 March 2020:
¥ 1623 million) is secured by:
- First pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on immovable
property (land and building) located at Bawal, Haryana and by way of
hypothecation on all present and fature moveable property, plant and
equipment (PPE)
- Second pari passu charge by way of liypothecation on all the present and
future curvent assets

Rate of interest - floating @ Indusind Bank Qase rate 6 month MCLR, Currently 7.50%
at 31 March 2021 (3) March 2020: 8 95% )

Maximum tenor of loan is for 96 months from the date of first disbursement

Principal amount is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments after a moratorium period of
24 months from the date of first disbursement First disbursement of the loan was in year
20)5-16
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Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stared)
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SCB Bank
Foreign currency (USD) loan from bank amounting to Z273 273 inillion (3!
March 2020: 351 351 million)( exchiding foresgn exchange impact of CY 2

Cuet of funds ~ Bank's margin of | 50%. Currently 8.55% at 31 March 2021 (3t
Sarcl 2020: 8 55%)

354 million & PY ¥ 55 7 million )15 secured by:
- First pari passu charge on all movable PPE (both present and future) of
Gnjara plant
- Second pari passu charge on curvent assels

asnmun tenor of loan shail not exceed 7 years from the date of first disbursement.
Principal amount is repayable in 20 cqual quarterly installments after a moratocinm
jrzriod of 24 months from the date of first disbursement, with first repayment dare 1n
ot go beyond 3| December 2019

HDFC Bank
Rupee loan from hank amounting to Z 2 415 30 million (31 March 2020
425 0 million) is secured by:

Rute of interest - floating @ HDFC Bank base rate 6 month MCI.R Currently
740 % asat 31 March 202} (31 March 2020 ; 8 45%)

- First pari passu charge on equitable mortgage over imimovable PPE (Jand and
building of Gujurat Plant) and movable PPE (Property, plant and equipment of’
Gujarat plant and Bawa) Pliase | plant)

- Second pari passu charge on stock and book debts,

Nanbimum tenor of loan is for 84 months from the date of first disbursement
Frincipal amount is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after a moratorium period
of 24 months from the date of first disbursement, First disbursement of the loan was
n year 2017-18

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash Mows arising from financing activities

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Nun-current Current Non-current Current
- burrowings* Borrawings Lorroirings® burrowines
—porrowines borrowingst 000 |
Bal: as at the beginning of the year 1,091 2 (00) 2,0583 1525
Chunges from financing cush flows
Proceeds from/(repayments) of current bomrowings (ner) (L6l 1) - (1,000 2) (1525)
Impact of foreign exchange 84 - 351 ;-
Balance as at the end of the year 938.5 (0.0 1,091.2 (0.0
* Includes current portion of non carrent borrowings
As at As at
16B.  Other financiul liubilities 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Payables for property, plant and equipment
- to athers 0.0 334
0.0 4
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4 1 ligures are in ¥ Million. except share data and unless othenwise stated)
1% U29150D1.2015PTC278233

17 . Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefirs

As at
31 March 2021

Asar
31 March 2020

- Provision for gratuity (refer to note no 32) 326 301
- Provision for compensated absences 104 101
Other provisions
- Provision for interest under export promotion capital grant scheme (icfer to note no 30) 3303 3I18S
393.3 358.7
Currenr
Provision fur employce benefits
- Provision for gramity (refer to note no 32) 12 ug
- Provision for compensated absences 90 70
10.2 7.8
403.5 366.5
As at As at
Maovement in ather provisions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opeaing balance 3183 2892
Provisions made during the year 38 295
Provisions utilised during the year - =
Closing balance 3503 3185
13 . Government grants As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Export promotion capital grant
Non cusrent portion 5672 3672
367.2 367.2

19 . Trade payables

As at
31 Muarch 2021

As at
31 Murch 2020

Toral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 280 228

Toral outstanding dues of creditors other than nicro cnterprises and small enterprises 6918 9197

(Also refer Note No 33)

719.8 242.5

(i} All trade payables are ‘current'

(i) Disclosure as required under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl

2006 based on the information available with the Company is as follows:

As at As ar
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The amounts remaining unpaid to supplicrs as at the end of the year 280 28
- Principal
- Interest
The amount of payments made under the Act beyoud the appointed day during the year 45 105
Fli= amount of interest paid under the act beyand the appoiuted day during the year -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 02 01
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year 02 01

| Tl asmount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise lor the purpose of
disaliowance as a Jeductible expenditure under the Act
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20. Other Ginancial liabilities
Current malurities of long term borrowings {Includes Tnterest accrued on borrowings 2 2.6
previous year 23.1)

Employee related payables

Payables for property, plant and equipment
- to relared parties

-t nthers

21 . Other current lisbilities

Advance from Customers (Refer Note 38)
Starutory dues payable

As at
31 March 2021

As at
3t March 2020

264.1 2000
247 182
6.1 91.6
673 55,1
362.2 373.9

As at
31 March 2011

As at
31 Muarch 2020

23 08
1063 40 1
108.6 40,9
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22. Revenue from operations
Salc of products
Finished goods

Year ended
31 March 2021

Yeur ended
31 March 2020

Sale of goods 3.1297 5.296.9
5,129.7 5.296.9
Other operading revenue:
Scrap sales 336 422
Tool sales 3.3 -
574 42.2
5.187.1 5.339.1
(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended Year ended
31 March 202) 31 March 2020
Goods transferred al pomt of time 5.187.1 5.339.1
5.187.1 5.339.1
(i) Disapgregation of revenue based on product
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Alloy wheels 5,129.7 5,296 9
Scrap 536 422
Tools 38 =
5,187.1 5.339.1
(iii) Revenue by Incation of customers
Yeur ended Yeur ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
India 5.187.1 5.339.1
Outside lndia - &
81871 5.339.1
(iv) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price :
VYear ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 51871 5,339.1
Less: Cash discount o .
5,187.1 53391
23. Other income
Interest income on bank deposit and others 7.2 254
Rental Income 59 56
Mark-to-market gain from dedvative instruments 07 21
Net gain on foreign Currency flucruations 207 -
Miscellaneous income 4.1 14
aR.6 34.5




Minda Kosei Alominum Wheel Private Limited

Nutes to the financial statemenss for the year ended 31 March 2021
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24

26.

27.

. Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw materials and components
AddP: Purchases of raw materials and components

Less : Closing stock of raw materiais and components

5. (A) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
~ Work-in-progress
- Finished goods

Ciosing stock
- Work- in -progress
- Finished goods

Changes in inventories ol
- Work- in-progress
- Finished goods

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Cameribwition to provident and other funds (refer to note no 32)
Employes siock option expenses (refer 1o note no 37)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on borrowings

Inlerest under export promotion capital goods scheme
Interest on delayed payment of statulory dues

Other charges

. Depreciation and amorti

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets

Year ended
_ 31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

406 | 456 7
24419 2RO 0
2,848.0 2,737.6
3575 406 |
24905 23315
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

297 388
1287 1743
1584 2131
607 207
1087 128 7
169 4 1584
(310) 91
200 456
{11.0) 54.7
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

3384 3384
194 214
08 09
205 262
370.1 3B6.9
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

95
38
47

g

1371

Year coded
31 March 2021

Yeur ended
31 March 2019

5447 583 5
i35 18
548.2 SA93

T WY
Bawal
e Lol |
%I. |
.!"l “ _-‘.-.
'y // i
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29 . Other expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Stores and packing materials consumed 1662 1642
Power and fue! 3101 3658
Repairs snd maintenance
-Plant and equipment 129 223
-Buildiny 31 71
- Others 164 204
Freight expense 184 182
Testing cxpense 53 5a
Insurance 106 74
Travelling and conveyance 187 255
Legal and professional 142 22
Rent 06 05
Rates and taxes 30 48
Auditor’s remuneration

- Statutory audit 20 20

- Other services 04 04

- Reimbursement of expenses ol 0l
Foreign exchange fluciuation - 763
Suppon Services 167 187
Customer Support fees 356 775
Management fees 746 548
Royalty expense 767 567
Corporale social responsibility expendiwre # 144 107
Miscellancous expenscs 3313 246

B46.3 9853

# Detail of corporate social responsibility expenditure
a Amount vequired to e spent by the Company dunng the year 144 105
b Amount spent in cash during the year on
(i) Construction / acquisiuon of assets . -
(13) On purpose other than (i) above 14 4 7

30. The Comparv hizd imported dury free capital vopds under Expon Promotion Uapital Goads Scheme {EPCGY scheme Liability of custpms duty
tawards expart obligation urnleriaken by the Compaty ameunts w £ 167 2 t
Under thie suid scheme, the Company has the obllation 1
3203 2 milhon on 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020
50%%)

Export Obligation of X 448 1 million (50%5 of Rs Rs 895 2 millior) with respect 1o Block 14 vears was expured during the year for which
extension has been obtained

Liabiiliy in respect of duty saved shown under non-current govesmimert grants of 2 367 2 mellion (31 March 2020: T 367 2 million)

In absence of confirmed expaort orders, as a matter of prudence., the Campany is not recognizing income relating to aforesaid duty and also
providing interest thereon

31, Contingent liabilities, Assels and commitmenls (to the extent not provided for)

(8)  Claims against comnpany nol ackrowledged as dett

| 31 March 2021 |31 March2020 |
| 282 282 |

*Represents show cause demand on applicability of excise duiy on designs provided by the customer

1) The Comparny does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contngent liabihty
i) The Company has assessed that it is only possible but rot probable that outflow of economic 1esources will be required

{b)  The Company has made sales to various customers against C-iorm 1ssued uncer Central Sales Tax Act. 1956 on account of which the Company
has paid 2% sales tax in place of 14 5% Total outstanding forms amounts o T 1 29 million (31 March 2020 T2 | 29 million )

.

) As per Industiial Policy 2015 of Government of Guja a, the Company 15 eligible for clairniny incentive for is newly established plant in Gujarzt
The Company has obrained rewistration certificate & Provisional higibility certficate from the autor ity
As per the scheme. subject to fulfillment of certain coeditions, Company 15 efigible f'or 50% of the net State Goeds and Services Tax (SGST)
paid to State Governmenl as subsidy: subject to maximum of onc tenzh uf the eligidle fixed investment in a particular year The company is 1n the
process of assessing the compliance of various condjtions as enunciated under the scheme Accondingly. Company as maner of prudence has not
recognised incentive income amounting 10 2 198 76 mullion duri g the yew eaded 31 March 2021 (Previous year € 74 5 million)

(¢}  Capital commitments (net of advance)

Estinated amount of’ centracts remaining to be executed on capical account ¥ 503 62 mnulion net of advances on 3; March 2021 (31 March
2020 ¥ 265 14 million)

N

s
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33, Employce Benefits Asal Asal
) March 2021 I March 20020

) liahilitie redating W amployee benefits
Non-current
Gratuin 1326) 30n
Provision for compensaled absences LR} [A1tNH]

1430 12
Current
Grania (3] Ry
Provision {or compensaicd abssaces (A} (7.0
Tatal employre beaeln liabilitire P01 7.n
Tiral = 33 [R0%

The henefit valued in this report are summarised below

Bt P binaih
1.

3R Vears

Vg )
=adin based on the

LE3E
Beaciit o deally i wnzs as ol rcwremenl bens b 2nd no vziiwg

! conditions

plizs

(ienn
(e = RIS 1

Tn casc of employces with aye abovc the rtirement age indicated above ihe relirement is assumed (o happen immedialch and \aluation is done accordingly
b} Defined henefit plan - Grutuity

The Compans lis a defined bynefi) gratus

plan, yoseracd by the Payment of Grawin Act. 1972 The schemic providcs for a luinp sum payment (0 vesied employees al
setirzmenil. deaih while in emplosent or on wmination of employmicat Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of scryice

Valuations are performed an cerwin basic sel of pre-determ ncd assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over ime The above defined benefit plan
cyposcs Uie Conpany Lo following risks:
Tnierest rare risk:

The defined benefit abligation calculaied uses a discount tate bascd on goyernment bonds I bond yields fall there shall be an increasc in uliimate cost of providing the abave
bencfiland thus the deflined benefit abligation will wnd 10 increase

Linuidity risk:
This is the risk that the Company is nol uble 10 mect the shori-term grawity payouts This may arise due 10 noa availability of enough cash /cash cquivalents 1o meet the
Tiabikities or holding of illiqind asscis nol bewg sald in time

Sulary inhutivn risk:

Higher than cxpecied increases in salary will increase the defined bencfit obligation
Demngraphic ri
This is thz risk of v:

biliry of resulls dur lo unsy siematic nare of decrements that include: monality, with disabilicy and

The Company activeh momtors how the duration and the cxpecied yizld of the im esuncts arc matching the cpecled cash oulows arising (rom Ui cmployee benefit
obligations The Company has nat changed the processes used (0 mana g M risks from previous periods

Regulatory risk:

Gratuity benefil is pad im avcotance with Une tegdiscinants of the paymenls of grawiny 3cL 1972 (as amended from time 1o ime) There is risk of change in reguladons
vequiting higher geajmii pavouis (¢ g increase in the mavimum limit o gratit of T 20 million)

Reconciliztion of the net defined bencfit (asset) / liab As at AR at
31 March 2021 31 Parch 2020
Fair vaJuc of plan assets - .
Defined benefit obligaion 3238 309
Brefined heanclig Laluliny 33.8 30.9
Recunciliation of present value of defined bencfit ubligativn Yeur ended Year ended
31 March 202031 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 309 1.3
Curent senvice cost 68 [
Interest cost i 14
Benzfis paid 23 h2)
Acwarial gain less) recognised in other comprehensive inzome
- expericnce acjustmenls 0 I%
- changes in finarcal assumplions 03 34
Balance af the vl of the year 33K Ju.Y
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Empinyee Benefits (Contdl.) Viar emifedl Yoanr e
31 March 2021 31 Maich 2020
Expense recugaised in profit or loss
Curreni senvice cost 6% [
Imezest cost 21 K
Myl vz v —
n N
Remeasurements reeogniseid in nther comprehensive income
Aciuaral (gain) / loss arising duzing the year 3N 3h
Raurm on s siecisivtzaisei deec than diszanng sy .
1£.7F 24

Defincd henelil nhlipativns
Asat
3 Murch 202)

Actuarial assumptions
Discousnl raie (per annum)
Futuic salary growth rate iper annuim)

Morwality rale (°a of TALM Da-x) 1ov 0%,

Allrition e
upio M0 years 3unek Juits
from 31- H ycars 2000, T00%
abote Hycars [R{H L.

The distount e31= indrated sbone rellezis the eatimated timing and cummenzy af benefi pasmenis 11 i based onickds” rates availablc an pplieshls bonds as on the corrent
valustisn daw The walary srosth rate 32 wilizsied streve i Cennpany't best seiieaie al3n icrezse [0'alin of the cmplo eci i e aeatd detirmmiped contiduing e
wenzaal rend S inflation, sl promstinmg, st expericacs md other relevam Bicfors such av demand and supplt in enphivmest markel, ol Sairion raé ]
e reprewents e Company s be catimaie of vmployee irnen i b Tilare fodver than e actoin of tetinoment, desth or dismblamem) detenmined conviderng various
facloes uth 3emanhenl kasmsis tienlinn palicy nduitry facipen pan tvpeoene cw

Asat 31 March 2021, the w cighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 2% £ years (31 March 2020:2% 19 ycars)
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably passibic changes at Uie reponting doiz (o one of the relevant aclarial assumptions hulding other assumpiions constant, woutd hay ¢ affected the defined benerit
abligalion by the amounts shown below

Year ended Yrar cruled
31 March 207 31 March 2020
Increas in Decreac te f‘]n(rra« o Decrease to
Discount raie (1%% movement) 93 395 267 2
Fulure salary growth ralc (1% mavement) mH »87 350 270
Alriion rate (30% of awition raics) 332 346 Jo2 317
Monaliry raie (10% of morality rales) 35K 339 DR Y

The abate senitiviy anshsesare based on@ change i 2n azzumpuan whils hotding all eter sscumpiions cokstanl bn pracize Ui i wilikel ol e change o Shsusn ison lo
peewr i wdlziien_and chahges i same of the semptions may be cnretimd Wiien cabealating the sentitiuin o the thefined benzf pbligation ia tignifeant a2 uarial
sumptions the same methods [presens value of defined bontfit obligation 2nd the relaled currem serviee codand where applizabic pas serdize cont caloulaied with (he
project=d uaiz credi methad at ke vrd af the reperiing permd) har been spphicd as and when salcubating the defined bunefig b iy trcognived e this bilance shezd Tt should
b pwastd i vabwntions do ot aiTee the shimaie cost of'the plar snly timiag of when the bevelin cow ste recoymisd

The methads and trpes of asumptines veed fn preparing the sensitivine anah iz did not changs compared o the priar peniod

Asset Liazbiliey Matehing Strategies
The scheme is managed on unfunded basis

Elfect of plan un Cumpuny’s foture cash flons

) Funiling arrangements and Punding Policy
The scheme is managed on unfunded basis

V) Expeelted benelit payments
Undiscountcd amount of expezied benefit payments for nest 10years are as follow s

Yuar endcd Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 220
Withia | vear 12 R}
2-5 years 74 73
=10 yeass ('} YN
Mare than 1) scars 1m3 LY

¢) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution 1onards vmplosecs’ prosident fund and cmploy ces® suie insurance plan scheme Under the schemes, the Compary 15 required @ contribule 3
specified peccentage of gaytoll cost, as specified in the rules of the scheme, 1o these defined zoutribution schemes The Campany has recopnised 219 4 million (311 March
2020 2 21 4 million § during the year as expence towards contribulion to these plans

Yeur ended Year ended
_ 3} Murch 2021 I March 2020
Providenl fund 17 144
Emnplosees' saie insurance seheme pE] I
19.4 3]
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33. Financiyl Instruments - Fair Values Anal Risk Munapement

4, Fair s alue ineauremenly

Financial Tnstruments hy Category

The following Labk: shews Uic camying amounts and faic values of tinancial asscis and financial labilincs

As at Asat As at As ol
31 March 2021 31 Mureh 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Nate Nu. FVTPL Amortised Cost* FYTPL Amactisal Cost”
Financis) asciq
Nun-current
Loans 6. - 16y [}
Other financial asscts 7 25 352
Current
Tiade reccivables 12 2930 4047
Loans 0. 167 129
Cash and cash cquivalents 13 R6 R 1432
Bank balances other than cash and cash cqun alenls 4 249 96
Other financial asscis 7. 263 (1)} 0 16
26.3 11214 266 963.6
Finaacisl liuhilitivs
Non-rurcant
Borrawiugs 16 . 6771 - R85 3
Other financial liabikines 168 - Zinfy 334
Current
Borrowings 16A = - -
Trade payables 1. 798 23
Qther Rnancial liabilitics 20 3622 319
Lm0 22359

*The camy ing anounts of rade recen ables. loans. cash and cash equivalens. other financial assets. rade pa ables and other financial liabilitics are zonsidered in be the same as their face valugs

i) Fuir value hicrarchy

Financial Asscts 2nd linbilities which are measored at Fair Valve Nores Level | Level 2 Level 3 Totad
-recurping fair value measuremcots a1 31 March 2021
Financial Avons
Forcign Exchanye Forward Contract 7 263 263
- 25.3 - 263
Assets aoil liahilitis which are measural at amortiscd cost Level ] Luvel2 Lovel 3 Total
fur which fwir vuloe are disclused at 31 Murch 2021 Nute No.
Financial Assets
Loans
Seeurity deposily ] ~ 169 169
Loan to related pany [ . 150 130
Loarn to employces 3 = V7 17
- - 336 334
Finanuyl Lighiliticy
Borrowings 16A = D3R4 038 4
- 9384 ¥34.4
Finuncial Asscis aod lishilitivs which are measural at Faie Value Nutes Lok Lovel 2 Livel 3 Total
-recurring fair value measurements e 30 March 20240
Finanvigl Asscts
Forcign Exchange Forward Conzact 7 - 266 . 26.56
26.6 - 26.6
Assct and Hubilities which are measwrad at amodtinal cust Level ) Level 2 Level 3 Tota
for which (air value wre disvloved ut 31 March 2020
Financiul Assers
Lorns
Sceurity deposils [3 - 164 14
Loan 10 relaed pany fi 120 2o
Loan to cmplovees A [} ay
= 293 E
Financial Liahititiey
Bonowings LAY L g
LB 1098 2

Gurugram
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Finunciul Instraments - Fair Valucs And Risk Mussgemeal Contd.
Levid 1: Level | hirarchy includes financial instrumcnis measured using quoted priccs

Levod 2: The fair value of financial instruroents that e vol traded in 3 active market is detomined waing valnation icchniques which masimise the use of observable market data and rely as lilids as
possible an catity-specific sstimaes [1 all significant inputs required Lo foir vakec an instrument are obscrvabie. the iustrminaat is included in kel 2

Level 3; I one or more of the significant inpuis is not based on obscrvable mvarket data. the instrumest is inchided in level 3
There are no transfors betweon Level |, Level 2 and Level 2 during the sear endod 31 March 2021 and 31 Maeh 2020

B) Valaarlvn lechnigie wsed v determine fain value

! Fair value of ade reccivables, cash and cash equiveients. bank balances other than cash and cash cruis alerts, curvent Toans, other current fimancisl assets, rade pas ables, atlier current financial

labilitics and borrowings approvimate their carrying amoant, lasgety due 1o the gh nanwe of these i

2 Infescst rotes on long term b ings (including cwsrest ilics) and other non current financial lisbilitics arc equivaient io e market rote of iicrest, Accordingly. the cerymy value of such
bartowings spprasimatcs [ value

3 Fair vahuc of ftwcd deposits pledged with various &, horities included in 1 other financial mxzels is eqnivalent to their camying smounL s Lhe inlerest rate oa them is
equivalenl 10 masket rolo

4. Fair valu of all othar nou-curreni assets have not been disclosed as the chanac from carying amoun! is dconscquenial

3 The fair value of farwand {areigh exchange contracts is detormined using fors ard exehange ries 3l the balanes ghoet dote.
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Financial Iastruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Contd.}
b. Financial risk mgnagem ent

The Company, as active suppliers For the automobile industry expose its business and products to various market risks. credit risk and Liquidity risk The
Company’s management structure with the main activities make necessary oruanised risk management system The rewulations, mstructions,
implementation rules and in particular, the regular conmunication throughout the tightly controlled management process consisting of planning,
contralling and monitoring collectively form the nsk management system used to define. record and mimimise operatng, financial and strategic nisks
Below notes explain the sources of risks in which the Company is exposed to and how it manases the risks

(i) Credii risk
Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fasls ro meei 1 cantzactial shhisatines, and
anses principally fram the Company's receinable from customers The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Company primarily has Lhe exposure from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM)

The Company's expected probability of default is nil and ail major paymenis are received on due dates without any sigmifican: delays, hence no loss
allowance has been provided in trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivable by the type of customers is as ol lows:

31 Muarch 2021
Trade receivables %I 0

Ageny i respect of trade recervables is as follows:

31 March 2021

Total Less than 3 I-1Zmonths 13 Carrying
munths ears amonnt
Trade receivables 983 6 R0 - - ELERE
83,6 9834 - - 943.6
31 March 2020
3 1-5 (of i
Total e ar 3-12 months L/l
munths yeurs omuunt
Trade receivables 404.7 T - 4047
04,7 1047 F z 04,7

Loauns wed orher finwncial ususts

2) The Company has given security deposits 10 Government departments and vendors far securing services from them As these are well estublished
organisations and have strong capacity to meet the obligations, risk of default is negligible or nil

b) The Company provides loans to employees for their personal needs and repayment by deduction from the salary ol the employces Loans are given
only to those employces who have served a minimum peciod as per the approved policy of the Company The expected probability of default is neglivible
or nil

¢) The Company has granted Joan to one of its related party during the year The Expected probability of detault is nculigibie or nil

The Company's exposure 1o credit tisk for loans and other financial assets is as follows:

Carrying amoun(

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Securty deposits 169 163
Loan to employees 17 ne
Loan to Related Party 150 129
Bark deposits (due to mature after 12 inonths from the reporting 25 330
date) - -
{nterest accrued on deposits 13 i 6
Otler seceivables 850 = 286
122.4 e — (X%

Cavhamd eath eqpovalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1s limited as the Company geneially imvests  deposits
with international and Jomestic banks wath high tepute
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management {contd.)
Financial risk management (contd.)
(i} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are sedled by
delivering cash or another financial assct. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensre, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilites, when they are due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Comnpany’s reputation Long ferm cash flow reqnirement is monstored through long term plans. In the line of long term planning, short term plans are
reviewed on quarterly basis and compared with actual position on monthly basis to assess the performance of the Company and liuidily position

The Company manitors the level of expecied cash inflows on hadc receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other
financial liabilities In addition to this, the Company maintains the following line of credit:

- The Company is having credit fimit from banks on account of borcowings. working capital, cash credit etc, of USD 8.5 million and % 3.050 million 3)
March 2020: USD 8 5 million andZ 3.050 million)

Exposure to liguility risk

The following are tie remaining undiscounted contractual maturities of financial labilities including interest at the 1eporting date:

31 March 202} Contractual cash fow
S hun 5 Cuarryi
Toral On demand [l (e 3-12 months  |-5 years ol Carrying
months years amount

Financial liabilities

Forcign currency loan from bank 3087 - 1952 68 7 22051 - 308.7
Rupee loan from banks 6297 - 42 41 1309 45190 454 6297
Employee related payables 247 - 247 - - - 247
Interest accrued on barrowings 26 - 26 - - - 26
Payable tor property, plant and equipment 933 - 754 . 200 - 935
Trade payables 7198 - g 1] 691.8 - - 7195
1.779.0 - 190.6 8914 6492.5 4.5 L779.0
Forward contracts® 458.7 - 19.5 2187 120.5 - 458.7
31 March 2020 Contractusf cush flow
Total On demand (S 3-12 months 1-5 years Molelthan 3 CERR i
months vears
Financial liabilities
Foreign currency loan from bank 407 0 - 753 58.6 2752 - 4070
Rupee loan from banks 684 2 - 14 91 572 607 5 45 684 2
Employee related payables 182 - 18.2 - - . 18.2
fnterest accrued on borrowings 31 - 31 B - - 3.1
Payable for property, plant and equipment 1801 - 146 7 - 334 - 180.1
Trade payables 9425 - 228 919.7 - - 942.§
22351 - 2810 1.035.5 914.1 4.5 2.235.)
Forward contracts® 438.3 - 79.2 106.9 252.3 - 438.3

* Conwractual cash flows in respect to forward contracts represents the hedying cost to be paid in subscquent periods These cash flows have been ziven for
contracts disclosed under financial assets and financial liabifities
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Financial Instiuments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Cond.)
Financial risk management {contd.)

i) Market visk

Market nsk is the «1sk that the fair value of future cashflows of a financial insirurents will Nuctuale because of changes i markel prece? rate Market risk cormprises three n Nes of
sk intzest rale nsk. forzign currency nsk and other pace nsks Financial instuments afectad by market dsk include loans and borrowings. deposils and payables’ recenables in
foreign currencies

Price risk
Fiuctuation i vonunudity price i markey afTects directly and indirectly the pnce ol raw material and components used by he Company
The kes raw maienal for the Campany s is duminium The Campany has arrangemenis with ils major customers for passing on the price impaci

Currency risk

The Compans is esposed lo currency risk io the extent that there is 2 mismalch between the currencies m nhich purchases and borrowings ase deneminaled and funciional currency of
ihe Company. i e TNR (3) The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominaled are US dollar, Japanese Yen and Ewro The Compamy uses forw asd exchange
coaracts 1o hedge its cumrency risk as per ihe approved policy of the Company The Company's policy is to ensure thal ils ne1 exposure is kept 1o an acceptable level by buyiny or
selling foccign cuirencies al spol rate when necessan (o address shorl lenm imbalances However. the Company has not designaled these derizatives as hedue relatonship

n ol brdeed furvign cufieniy exphizu e
Particulan At at 31 March 2021 Al at 31 Moarch 2020
Cwrency | Amount In [ Amountin Z| Currency | Amouni In |Amount in €
Foreign (million) Foreign (millinn)
Currency Currency
—— .‘ —a
Trouny bk = usD 43 2733 UsD 3504
130 =11 it LSD i 3492
Derails of unhedped foreign currency exposures:
Expoyure 1o cuneney risk
31 March 2021
USD Jry EUGR
Borrowings “2) - -
Trade payables and ourer (inancial liabilities {35) [{1X0)] (0 n3)
Leay Farmard epitratt sustamding hl . +
Net expostrre ol recognived Bnanedal adiennilabilitiesy : E =5y (LLRT)} [ELALED]
31 Murch 2020
uso JPY EUR
Borrowings (=4 a -
Trade P les und olhver [inancial liabilities 34 wm w03y
Loy eith 2 M
Net expornre of recagnived linaneial soetdifabibitben 7 0] [TA) Wity
Sensitivity wnulvsis
A bly possible hening/ (weakening) of USD INY and EURO against INR () at the end of the year, would hasve affecied the measurement of financial instruments

denommated 1n a foreign currency and afTected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below This analysis assumes thai all other vanables in panicular interest rates, remain
conslant

Profit/ (Loss) T in million

3) March 2021 Strengthening Weakening
UsD(n moyvemeni) mo LR
INY (0 5% movamen:) . - -
EURO (U 3% movement) o Bl

31 March 2020

USD (0 3% movement) (2R) 28
INY {0 3% mosenrent) mo) na
EURO {1 3" morvemenl) (ol 0ol

AW e U [ I | L Lura
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Finaacial Instruments - Fair VaJues And Risk Management (Cond.)
Finuncial risk management (contd.)

Taterest rate risk .
Tnierest rate risk is the risk thal the fir valye or future cosh Nows of @ fi

nisk of chiinges in market intetes) rales relotes primarily to the Company”

will Ji becnuse of changes in market interest rales The Company s exposure Lo i
i obligaticns wil Mloaling intziest rales.

The Company tries 1o manage the risk partly by entering into fixed-ratz instrirnents and partly b barrowang ata Noaling rate

Expovure i Interest rate tik

The Company has the lollowing exposwe in inierest bearing borrowings as on repoing dae:

Fixed interest borrowings
Varioble inierest borrowings

The Compainy s fixed rate by ings are carvied at
Ouctuate because of a change in markel interest rales

As at
3 Movch 2020

Asat
A Marrh 2okl

308 7
6297

4070
684 2

d cost They are, therefore. nol subject lo interest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash Mows il

Varioble interat borrowings include rupee loan from banks which cairy MCLR based inierest raie

A reasonably possible change of 1% in interest rate at the reporting date, would have alTected profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analves assumes that all other +riilile

remam corsiant

Yeur ended

31 March 2021
31 March 2020

Profit / (Loss)
1% increase 1% decrease
07 ©n
0.2 @9
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34. Related Parties
Related party and naturc of related party relationship where control exists:-

A

~

Ultimate Holding Company and Holding company : Minda Industrics Limited, India

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year/previous period:-

B) Other enterprise over which Key Management personnel is able to exercise significant influence

1

Koset Minda Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

C) Enterprise having significant influence

Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limited

D) Feliow Subsidiary

I

RS V]

Mindarika Pvt Ltd

Minda Distribution Service Private Limited®
Minda Onkyo Private Litd.

M J Casting Ltd.*

E) Associate companies

~N oW b WY -

Kosei North Aluminum Hokkaido Co Limited
Minda Projects Limited

Kosei Aluminium Thailand Co Limited

Kosei Aluminum Co Limited

Minda Nex Gen Tech Pvt Limited

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd

Minda Infrstructure LLP

F) Key management personnel

~N AL pH W -

Naveesh Garg (Non executive Director)

Kundan Kumar Jha (Managing Director)

Nirmal Kumar Minda (Non executive Director)

Deepali Chandhoke (Independent- Non Executive Director)
Yoshihiro Toda (Whole time Director)

Shunkichi Kamiya (Non Executive Director)

Krishan Kumar Jalan (Non Executive Director)

G) Other related parties

1
2
3

Pallak Minda ( Relative of direclor)
Paridhi Minda Jindal ( Relative of director)
Suman Minda ( Relative of director)

* Amalgamated with Minda Industries Limited (Holding Company) vide NCLT approval dated 1 June 2020

Transactions with related parties

A. Holding company

a)

Other expenses

ESOP Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Suapport Services
Customer Support Fees
Management fecs

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

08
47
16.7
85.6
74.6

102

7.8
18.7
77.5
548
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Related P'arties (contd.)

(b) Reimbursements
Expenses recovered / received
Expense re-imbursed / paid
(c) Sale of goods

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year end
Payables
Receivables / advances

B. Other enterprise over which Key Management personnél is able to cxercise
significant influence
(a) Purchase of raw material, components and parts
{(h) Other cxpenses
Testing expenses
(¢) Reimbursements
Expense re-imbursed / paid

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year end
Receivables / advances

C. Enterprise having significant influcnce
a) Purchase of raw material, components and parts
b} Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(¢) Reimbursements
Expenses recovered / received
Employee benefits recovered / received
Expense re-imbursed / patd
(d) Capital advances
(¢) Other expenses
Testing expenses
Legal and professional
Royalty expenses

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year end
Payables
Receivables / advances

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

0.03
109.2

As at
31 March 2021

0.8
1.1
14.9

As at
31 March 2020

140.]
5.55

Year ended
31 March 2021

85.4
4.63

Year ended
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2021

0.04

0.8

0.0

As at
31 March 2020

0.0

Year ended
31 March 2021

0.1

Year ended
31 March 2020

885.7

44
1.9
20.7

As at
31 March 2021

1,614.5
26.2

1.4
14
0.1

As at
3] March 2020

318.7
1242

466.0
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Related Parties (contd.)

D. Fellow Subsidiary

a)

(2)

Reimbursements

Expenses recovered / received

- Minda Onkyo Pvt. Ltd

Balance outstanding as at the year end
Payables

Receivables / Advances

Minda Onkyo Pvt. Ltd

E. Associate companies

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd

- Minda Projects Limited

- Minda Infrastructure LLP

Loans given

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid
Reimbursements

Expenses recovered / received

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd
Expense re-imbursed / paid

- Minda Nex Gen Tech Pvt Limited
- Kosei Aluminum Co Limited

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd
Other Income

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid

- Rental Income

- Miscelleanous Income

Other expenses

Miscelleanous Expenses

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd
Royalty expense

- Kosei Aluminum Co Limited

- Kosei Aluminiumn Thailand Co Limited

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

0.2

0.2

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

0.20

5.8

15

374
18.5

0.02
0.34

0.12
0.4

54

0.1

0.2

27.2
13.8
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Related Parties (contd.)

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year cnd
Payables
Minda Infrastructure LLP
Kosei Aluminium Thailand Co Limited
Kosei Aluminium Co Limited
Receivables / Advances
Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Limited

F. Other rclated parties
(a) Other expenses
Rent expenses
- Pallak Minda
- Paridhi Minda Jindal
- Suman Minda
Training Expenses
- Automotive Component Manufacturers association of India

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year end
Payables
Paridhi Minda Jindal

G. Key management personnel
Managerial remuneration *

Short term employee benefits
Kundan Kumar Jha

Yoshihiro Toda

Sitting fees

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

12.1
13.0

12.6

As at
31 March 2021

91.6
5.7
11.3

14.4

As at
31 March 2020

0.8
0.9
0.5

As at
31 March 2021

0.8
1.0
0.6

0.0

0.0

As at
31 March 2020

Does not include provisions/ contributions towards gratuity,

compensated absences for all directors, as such provisions/ contributions

23.5
7.0
0.3

243
6.3
0.2
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35. Operating Segments
a. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses. including revenues and cxpenses that relate to tansuctions with any of the Company's other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of alloy wheels which constitutes a single business segment. accordingly,
disclosure requirement of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments™ are not required to be given. The Company operates within one
geography i.e., India and al the non-current asscts (cxcluding Deferred tax asset and Income tax asset) lies in India. Therefore,
disclosure for geographical segment is also not required. Results of the Company are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of
Directors to asscss the performance of the Company and to make decisions accordingly.

b. Major customer

Revenue from two enstomers of the Comipany are more than 95% of the Companv's total revenue Jor current and previous vear.
[
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36.

37.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the tansle: pricing regulation under
Sections A2-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961 Since, the law requires existence of such informatian and documeniation ta be contemporaneous in natare. the
Company continuously updates its documentation to determine whether the transactions entered mito with tie assocuted enterprises during <he financial year on
an amm's length basis The management is of the opinion Ut such transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legisiation wili not have amy intpact on
the financial statements, particularly on the amount of 1ax expense and that of provision for taxatian

Share-based compensation
The shincholders of the Parent Company had approved the UNO Minda Emplayee Stock Option Scheme - 2019 (hecen referred as UNOMINDA ESOS-
2019) through postal ballot resolution dated March 23, 2019

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had approved and granted oprions to Eligible Empioyees of the Paent
Company anc its Subsidiaries

This scheme provided for conditional grant of stock options at nominal value 1o eligible empioyees as determined by the Nomination and Reinuneration
Committee from time to ime The vesting conditions under this scheime include the Company achieving the target market capiralisation The maximum number
of equity shares allotted wider the scheme arc 1,012,359 at an excroise price of ¥325/- each The scheme 1s momtored and supenvised by the Nomination and
Remuncration Committee of the Board of Directors in compliance with the provisions of’ Secu ities and Exchange Board of India (Sliare Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and amendments theceol from time to time

The Company had accounted for Equity Stack Optiens of the Parent Company as per the accountng treaument prescribed by the Securites wrd Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benetits) Regulations, 2014 (as amended frons time to tine) and Ue fnd AS - 102 on Share Bascd Pavinent

The terms und conditions related to the grant of the share options are as fullows:

Scheme Year Datc of Grant | Number of options Vesting Exercise perivd | Exercise price (%)
eranted conditions oer share
Achieving
targer  market
Minda Employee Stock Option Scheme N _ capitalization 2 Yea from the N
b 2019-20  |16-May-19 85,554 of purent e 35
2019 date of vesting
Company  on
or before 31
May 2022
The number af share uptions under stock option plan is as follows:
Ouistanding
at the Granted during Forfeited/lapsed/ Exercised | Exercisahle at the| Outstanding at the
Scheme Year beginning ol CoceYs expired during the during the | end of the year 31| end of the year 31
the year 01 year vear March 2020 NMarch 2020
April 2019
Minda Bmployee Stack |55 g 1o : 85,554 2 i ; 85,554
Opsion Scheme 2019

Fuir valustion
The parent company has provided the fair value of Share based payment cost that have been done by an independent valuer on the date of zrant using the
Binomiul Model The fair valuc as on grant date is Rs 41 24
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The fallowing assumptions were uved for calculation of falr velue of granta:

|Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Risk- free mrevest rate (36) 7.13% 7.15%

4 4
Expected life of options {years) years )
Expectad valaslity (%) 41% 41%
Share price as oa Grant date in ¥ 318 318
Dividend vield 0.63% 0.63%

The Risk free rate was cousidesed for the calculation is the interest rate applicable for 3 maturity equal 1o the expecied life of the options based on the zero-
coupon yield curve for Goverament Securities or 10 years Government boads, Volaglity calculation is 8 reasure of the amount by which a price bad (luctuated
or is expected to (ucnuote duriag the period. The measure volatility is uted in prion- pricing model way the namuslized standard deviation of the continuousty
compounded rate of the retum of the stock over a period of time. The dividend yield for the year was derived by dividing the dividend for the period with the
coyrent market price,

38. Revenue from Contructs with Customer

The tble below represents summary of contract assets and Linbilis seloting to with s
Arml Asat
[Partieutars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Reernahles 9836 404.7
©ontract Lisbibnes 2.3 08
39. Dhelosure required under Section 186 (4) of the Companles Act, 2013
Particulars of Luan Given
anai-21 2019-20
Quistonding | Maximum Amouat Mbaximom Amount

{Name of the Entlty Losn Glven Loan Chitstanding Tnon Clven  |Dntstendinn Tnom Qutstandino
:leci Minda Morld Private Limited 150 150 R0 12.0 120 120

The Lean Iy grven only for the working czpital roquirerient of the Benawes

40. Coronavirus (COVID-19) Impact on Financlal Reporting

The Compsay hos idered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating 10 COVID-19 oa the camrying amounts of property, plant and
#quipment, receivables, inventories and other curreat assets. In developing the assuzmptions relnting to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and externsl sources of information
including ic f The Comparty has performed sensilivity analysis an the assumgtions used and hased on current estimates expects that the
carying amount of these assets will be recovered.

4L The figures have been rounded off to the pearest millions of rupees upto one decimal places. The figure 0.0 wherever stated represents value less than Rs
50,000/

As per our report of even date anached
For BSR & Co.LLP Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants of Minda Kosel Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Firm Registation No_: 101248 W/ W-100022
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